
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Date:    January 24, 2014 
 

RFI Title:    Request for Information (RFI) for Upgrade and Support for IBM® 

Tivoli Maximo Enterprise Asset Management Version 7.5. 

 

Department:   Commerce Department, Division of Aviation 

 

Addendum ONE 

 
 

TO ALL APPLICANTS: 

 

You are hereby notified of the following changes to the above RFI: 

 
  

Attached please find:   
 
1) The Vendor Questions and Answers 
2) Additional Asset Management/Maximo information request 
3) The contact list from the informational meeting, 1/7/14. 

 

 

   
 

Please sign, date, and attach this sheet with your response, as this addendum and any attachments are now 

incorporated into the RFI. 
 
 
_________________________________    ______________________________ 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE NAME (Print) 
 
 
_________________________________    _______________________________ 
COMPANY NAME TITLE (Print 
 
____________________ 
DATE 

  

 
 

 



CMMS RFI Questions 

1. Are you current on IBM support for Maximo or will you need to purchase or subscribe to 

net new licensing for this initiative? 

 

IBM does not support Aviation’s Maximo.  New licenses will be needed for this initiative. 

 

a. Is the expectation to purchase perpetual licenses or undertake a true SaaS 

model? 

 

Both options are open for consideration at this time. 

 

2. You indicate that you currently have an EAM consultant assisting with your process.  Can 

you please identify the firm(s) you are working with in this initiative? 

 

HNTB, A.L. Jackson & Co, and Trillion Aviation. 

 

a. Is this consultant eligible to participate in the RFI and subsequent RFP process to 

implement Maximo? 

 

No. 

 

b. Will their efforts or documents be made available to RFP respondents? 

 

Documents will be made available if needed by firms to provide the best 

proposal. 

 

3. Does the airport currently use any mobile devices or platforms to support efforts (not 

necessarily associated with EAM)? 

 

Aviation currently uses BES 5 and BES 10 (Blackberry Enterprise Server).  

 

a. Is there an IT or business strategy or roadmap in place for enterprise mobility 

within the airport?  If so, can you share any high level information? 

 

Aviation plans to move to a hosted mobile device management solution to 

support smartphones, tablets and laptops.  Dependent upon the necessary 

approvals, purchase, setup and deployment is expected to be complete by the 

end of 2014. 



 

4. Do you plan to enable O&M or Facilities contractors’ use of your Maximo solution or will 

they be asked to provide their own instance? 

 

It is anticipated that the Facilities Maintenance Contractor will use Aviation’s Maximo 

solution. 

 

5. What are the expected timelines for release of the RFP and starting the 

upgrade/implementation project – will it be in mid-2014? 

 

The RFP is expected to be issued in the summer of 2014.  Dependent upon completion 

of the procurement process, the project is expected to begin in early 2015. 

 

6. Please confirm if the budgetary approvals are in place for this Upgrade/implementation 

project. 

 

Confirmed. 

 

7. Please mention the top business drivers and pain areas that are driving this project. The 

RFI does mention about replacing the existing out-dated EAM system and replacing 

multiple systems with IBM Maximo to take care of multiple processes and functions. 

 

Top business drivers include: 

 Understanding total expenditures for facilities maintenance for cost analysis, 

lifecycle costing, repair and replacement decisions, and budgeting purposes 

 Reporting and communicating maintenance activities 

 Scheduling and managing work orders 

 Completing predictive and preventative maintenance 

 Customer service 

 

8. Please confirm the details expected in the response to this RFI: Vendor Contact Info, 

Sample Project Management Plan with methodologies, Others 

 

Please refer to RFI, Section V: Submittals for submission requirements.  While not 

required, Aviation encourages vendors to provide additional information that’s 

pertinent to the Maximo implementation process.  Relevant topics may include: 

 Systems integration (GIS, SCADA, financial, procurement, document 

management, public feedback, etc.) 



 Mobile technology solutions (smartphones, tablets, handhelds, etc.) 

 Maximo add-ons (Maximo Spatial, Maximo Everyplace, etc.) 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:  Please see “Attachment Two” of Addendum One. 

 

9. The respondents are not expected to provide any defined solution or cost estimates in 

this response as that would be done during RFP stage. Please confirm the same. 

 

Confirmed; however, Aviation encourages vendors to provide additional information 

that’s pertinent to the Maximo implementation process. 

 

10. For the Maximo upgrade/implementation project, can the vendors propose an onsite-

offsite resourcing model with a part of the team working remotely? 

 

Vendors may present information regarding various options for resourcing as part of 

their submittal.    

 

11. Would you want us to demonstrate the current Maximo solution and potential benefits 

we can bring to the table in our presentation or the response? 

 

The presentation should demonstrate, in the best possible manner, the use of Maximo 

functionality with any appropriate enhancements to perform the functionalities listed in 

Section VII: Process Summaries. 

 

12. Would you want us to present our case studies and capability in the response for 

services on Maximo upgrade / implementation? 

 

The presentation should demonstrate, in the best possible manner, the use of Maximo 

functionality with any appropriate enhancements to perform the functionalities listed in 

Section VII: Process Summaries. 

 

13. Please confirm if you will be directly purchasing the Maximo licenses from IBM or would 

be interested in IBM partners / resellers to provide this especially since you are 

interested in a hosted / Maximo as a service solution. 

 

Both options are open for consideration at this time. 

 



14. We understand that the following EAM processes are most important /critical for City to 

be implemented in Maximo – Materials Management, Work Orders Management, and 

Inventory Management. Please confirm. 

 

Please refer to Section I: Introduction. 

 

15. Will design of EAM processes also form part of the scope of this project or will the 

vendors be given process maps and documents that are already identified, defined and 

approved which would then be required to be implemented in Maximo by the vendor? 

 

The EAM consultant team is designing the EAM processes which will identify and define 

the intended processes.  The RFP will define the responsibilities for the Maximo 

integrator.  Those responsibilities may include validation as well as review for possible 

suggestions for consideration.    

 

16. Do you have the required data for all the assets that you intend to manage through 

Maximo documented and available in both hard and soft copies or would data collection 

or data migration from existing system also be part of the project? 

 

Data collection is currently taking place and will continue to occur in advance of the 

integration process. 

   

17. Since an upgrade utility from Maximo v3.1 is not available, this would be a new Maximo 

implementation for the City with some inputs from the old system and through 

requirement gathering workshops with business and IT followed by design and 

deployment of the solution. Please acknowledge your understanding regarding the 

same. 

 

Acknowledged, that this will largely be a new Maximo implementation.  However, most 

of the requirements gathering workshops have or will be completed by the EAM 

consultant team in advance of the integration effort.  More information regarding these 

efforts will be provided as part of the RFP process.  

 

18. Are you aware of the various industry solutions and Add-Ons with Maximo like Maximo 

for Government, Maximo Transportation, Maximo Spatial, Maximo Everyplace, etc. and 

do you intend to use any/some of these for a better and more robust EAM system? 

 



Aviation is aware of the add-ons and intends to use add-ons if they achieve the goals of 

the project.  Aviation welcomes information regarding the benefits of these add-ons as 

part of your informational submittal and presentation.   

 

19. Do you have an existing document management system in place that you would like to 

be integrated/ merged with IBM Maximo Enterprise Asset Management product? Please 

share details. 

 

Aviation has not concluded whether or not Maximo should be integrated/merged with 

any existing City or Aviation document management system.  Aviation welcomes 

information regarding integration with document management systems as part of your 

informational submittal and presentation.   

 

20. In addition to implementation of IBM Maximo Enterprise Asset Management product, 

please confirm what all do you envisage to be part of this project: Integration with an 

existing GIS system, Integration with an existing financial system, Using Maximo on 

Mobile devices / handhelds/Smartphones/tablets etc. 

 

Integration of systems and mobile technology is expected. The exact systems to be 

included in the integration will be determined at the time of the issuance of the RFP.  

Aviation welcomes information regarding integration with GIS, financial, procurement 

and other systems as part of your informational submittal and presentation.   

 

21. Will this City of Philadelphia Aviation Division Maximo 7.5 upgrade project dovetail into 

a larger City of Philadelphia infrastructure project at some point in years to come? If so, 

are there any timeframes to coincide with in the future? Is the intention to have this 

City of Philadelphia Aviation Division Maximo system act as a greater asset management 

system for the overall City of Philadelphia as well as for the Aviation Division?  

 

It is possible that the Maximo upgrade may be affected by a larger City of Philadelphia 

infrastructure project but no timeframes are available at this time.  Aviation’s system is 

not intended to act as a greater asset management system for the City of Philadelphia. 

 

22. Please provide an organization chart for the Philadelphia Aviation Division, up to the 

CEO. 

 

Please see attached. 

 



23. What is the total number of maintenance activities that are done at the airport today 

managed by the City of Philadelphia? What percentage of increase would be caused by 

taking into account subs in the future? It is understood that not all occurrences of 

preventive maintenance schedules result in a work order, and that other systems are 

used in addition to Maximo (i.e. Maintenance Connection, various spreadsheets); please 

include maintenance activities for all or break them out in some manner. Also, should 

we assume that the upgraded Maximo system will incorporate all of these other 

maintenance third party systems when live - please confirm? 

 

Please refer to Section II: Background.  Additional information may be provided as part 

of the RFP process.  The submittal for this RFI process is not a specific proposal; rather, 

Aviation seeks information regarding and a demonstration of best practices using 

Maximo functionality.  For purposes of this RFI, it may be assumed that these interim 

transitional approaches will be replaced by Maximo. 

 

24. How many SCADA systems are in place at the airport? How many are being used to 

actively create corrective work orders, or to analyze data to improve maintenance 

schedules? Does the airport plan to implement many more, and if so is there an 

implementation plan or technical standard to ensure that they can be integrated? 

 

Additional information may be provided as part of the RFP process.  The submittal for 

this RFI process is not a specific proposal; rather, Aviation seeks information regarding 

and a demonstration of best practices using Maximo functionality.  Aviation welcomes 

information regarding the integration with SCADA systems as part of your informational 

submittal and presentation.    

 

25. Please identify the total number of assets and locations that are managed by the City of 

Philadelphia Aviation Division and that are intended to be managed by the upgraded 

Maximo system. This would include all other systems and paper-based processes that 

are assumed to become part of the system. 

 

Please refer to Section II: Background.  Additional information may be provided as part 

of the RFP process.  The submittal for this RFI process is not a specific proposal; rather, 

Aviation seeks information regarding and a demonstration of best practices using 

Maximo functionality. 

    

26. Is it possible to provide a set of sample data from the Maximo system? This would be 

valuable to review the quality and completeness of the data. 



 

The submittal for this RFI process is not a specific proposal; rather, Aviation seeks 

information regarding and a demonstration of best practices using Maximo 

functionality.  No data from the existing Maximo system is expected to be imported to 

the upgraded Maximo system.   

  

27. How many of the 550 employees are Maximo users? What is their usage profile by 

group - i.e. how many access more than 3 applications (power users), how many access 

1 (regular users), and how many interact only by responding to approval notices (casual 

users)? 

 

Additional information may be as part of the RFP process.  The submittal for this RFI 

process is not a specific proposal; rather, Aviation seeks information regarding and a 

demonstration of best practices using Maximo functionality. 

 

28. Does the City of Philadelphia Aviation Division anticipate integrating a public feedback 

system into Maximo? For example, most airports now have a mobile application that 

can be used to raise service requests or provide service feedback - is this to be deployed 

and would the feedback integrate to Maximo? 

 

Aviation is interested in public feedback systems.  Aviation welcomes information 

regarding the integration with public feedback systems as part of your informational 

submittal and presentation. 

  

29. What GIS systems do you have? Do you have GPS data in any systems? 

 

Additional information may be provided as part of the RFP process. The submittal for 

this RFI process is not a specific proposal; rather, Aviation seeks information regarding 

and a demonstration of best practices using Maximo functionality.  Aviation welcomes 

information regarding the integration with GIS systems as part of your informational 

submittal and presentation.  

   

30. Please clearly define City of Philadelphia Aviation Division’s legal procurement/ 

disclosure guidelines regarding use of proprietary and confidential labeling in vendor RFI 

responses. 

 

If the City's Aviation Division contemplates disclosing material in a RFI response clearly 
marked proprietary and confidential when the City has not received (i) an applicable 



request qualifying under the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's Right to Know Law 
(RTKL), 65 P. S. §§ 67.101-67.3104, or (ii) an applicable subpoena or court order, the 
City's Aviation Division will ordinarily consult with the prospective vendor to obtain its 
consent before disclosing.  
 
For example, one prospective vendor labeled questions it submitted concerning an RFI 
as proprietary and confidential. The Aviation Division's procurement policy is to provide 
all questions submitted by all prospective vendors, and the City's answers thereto, to all 
prospective vendors that have responded to an RFI, and in an Addendum to the RFI 
posted on the City's website and available to the public. Names of prospective vendors 
submitting particular questions are not provided in such responses/Addenda. This 
prospective vendor was contacted, and consented to such disclosure of its questions.  

 
If a request under the RTKL for material supplied by a prospective vendor is received by 
the City, the City's Law Department will determine whether the material clearly marked 
proprietary and confidential must be disclosed or, alternatively, is exempt from 
disclosure requirements. Section 708 of the RTKL (65 P.S. § 67.708) lists many kinds of 
records that are exempt from disclosure under the RTKL, including in paragraph 11 "a 
record that constitutes or reveals a trade secret or confidential proprietary 
information." The Law Department will consider whether or not any of the exceptions 
listed in Section 708 apply; the exception in paragraph 11 (possibly in combination with 
others) is particularly likely to be found to apply in this situation.  
 
Under 65 P.S. § 67.102 in the RTKL, the term “confidential proprietary information” is 
defined as “commercial or financial information received by an agency [the City] (1) 
which is privileged or confidential; and (2) the disclosure of which would cause 
substantial harm to the competitive position of the person that submitted the 
information.” If the City’s redaction of some confidential proprietary information in its 
response to a request under the RTKL is appealed, the City will need the prospective 
vendor to supply factual information in the form of an affidavit that can satisfy these 
requirements. In other words, on appeal, the prospective vendor will need to provide 
sufficient facts with regard to a) its efforts to maintain the confidentiality of the material 
in question, and b) why there would be “substantial harm” to the prospective vendor’s 
competitive position were the information to be disclosed.  
 
Additionally, Section 707(b) of the RTKL provides that the City "shall notify a third party 
of a request for a record if the third party provided the record and included a written 
statement signed by a representative of the third party that the record contains a trade 
secret or confidential proprietary information. . . ;." The City will comply with the 
requirements of Section 707(b).  Prospective vendors are accordingly encouraged to 
provide signed written statements described in Section 707(b) when appropriate.  

 
Requesters under the RTKL can appeal denials by the City of disclosure requests. The 
City cannot guarantee that its denial will be upheld.  



 
If a demand for material supplied by the prospective vendor is received by the City by 
subpoena or court order, the City's Law Department similarly will determine, in 
accordance with the law governing the subpoena or court order, whether or not to 
disclose material clearly marked proprietary and confidential. The Law Department will 
ordinarily consult with the prospective vendor before making such a disclosure, giving it 
an opportunity to oppose the disclosure by a court filing, if feasible, but the Law 
Department cannot guarantee that such consultation will be feasible, possible, or 
undertaken in every case. 
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ADDENDUM ONE/Attachment Two: 

Additional Asset Management Functionalities 

 

The Division of Aviation (Aviation) requests that RFI Respondents provide any relevant information and materials on 

the asset management functionalities listed below in addition to those identified in the Maximo Business Process 

Summaries furnished as part of the RFI. This information will be used to further assist Aviation in identifying and 

exploring Maximo implementation opportunities. Questions and requests for clarification regarding the information in 

this Addendum must be submitted in writing to the City’s Primary Contact not later than January 31, 2014. 

Additional Asset Management and Maximo functionalities of interest to Aviation include: 

► Inventory & Personal Property Management – It is anticipated that Maximo will supplant Aviation’s current 

Inventory and Personal Property tracking and management systems. Consequently, the Maximo 

implementation solution will need to provide these functionalities: 

o Ability to track both maintenance and non-maintenance-related inventory items and associated data 

including stock levels, stockroom locations, reorder points, etc. 

o Integration with COTS handheld bar code and RFID scanners for identifying inventory items and 

tagged assets and retrieving/updating Maximo-stored information; 

o Ability to track personal property items (computers, furniture, etc.); and 

o Online ordering capabilities to allow Aviation users to view inventory items and levels and issue 

request for stock items via an online, real-time interface that can be processed by Aviation’s 

Warehouse. 

 

► Spatial Asset Management & GIS Integration – Aviation is interested in exploring options for integrating 

GIS in its Maximo implementation to provide geospatial asset management capabilities such as: 

o Dynamic GIS functionality for geospatial asset and location identification and tracking;  

o Linking of Maximo-stored data and information (maintenance histories, related parts and equipment, 

etc.) with GIS components including assets, layers, polygons, points, etc.; and 

o Asset Management workflows and processes integration such as the ability to assign work orders 

within GIS representations.  

 

► Mobile Technology Integration – Aviation is interested in exploring the use of mobile devices including smart 

phones, tablets, and ruggedized laptops to provide remote access, either in real-time (preferred) or via docking 

cradle synchronization, to asset and work management information and processes. Contemplated 

applications utilizing mobile devices include: 

o Issuing, receiving, managing, and completing of work orders from mobile devices while in the field; 

o Viewing of asset and repair histories, manuals, and job and safety plans via mobile devices; 

o Accessing of spatial information based on GPS coordinates; 

o Performing routes/rounds, meter readings, and inspections;  

o Viewing and reserving available equipment, tools, and spare parts and 

o Utilizing bar code and RFID reading capabilities for asset identification, tracking, and management. 

 

► SCADA Integration – Aviation currently utilizes Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems, 

including for its HVAC infrastructure, to remotely control and monitor processes and equipment and collect ta 
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in real-time from various locations and assets across the PHL and PNE campuses. Aviation is interested in 

exploring potential integration opportunities for SCADA and Maximo to enhance the functionalities and 

capabilities of both systems. Potential applications could include: 

o Notification and tracking of SCADA alarms within Maximo; 

o Automatic or manual creation of work orders based on SCADA alarm and failure notifications;  

o Ability to track equipment operating parameters and to generate automated work orders based on 

equipment operational needs as measured by run hours, error codes etc.; and 

o Ability to generate reports within Maximo utilizing SCADA-related data. 



Company Contact Email Address

Banetti Adam Napolitano adam.napolitano@banetti.com

Banetti Lonny Stevenson lonny.stevenson@banetti.com

Bentley Systems Gary Griffiths gary.griffiths@bentley.com

Birlasoft Nipun Mahajan nipun.mahajan@birlasoft.com

Birlasoft Rajat Khungar rajat.khungar@birlasoft.com

Cohesive Information Solutions Russ Anderton randerton@cohesivesolutions.com

Computer Facility Integration Garrett Sizer gsizer@gocfi.com

Digital Intelligence Systems Jacquillia Hooper jacquillia.hooper@disys.com

Electronic Data Inc Jim Lindsay jlindsay@edatai.com

FutureNET, Inc (MBE) Noel Lowe fni@fnetinc.com

General Dynamics Jim Bent jim.bent@gdit.com

IBM Brian Edens beedens@us.ibm.com

IBM Jerry Martinez gmartine@us.ibm.com

IBM Doug Stevenson douglas.stevenson@us.ibm.com

Interloc Solutions Greg Hoile ghoile@interlocsolutions.com

Interloc Solutions Gretchen Gallagher gretcheng@interlocsolutions.com

Maven Asset Management Jennifer Gatza jgatza@mavenasset.com

Maven Asset Management Luke Gatza lgatza@mavenasset.com

MFR Consultants (WBE) Carrie Wahl cwahl@mfrconsultants.com

MFR Consultants (WBE) Maria Roberts mfrizelle@mfrconsultants.com

Projetech Jacquie Chischillie jchischillie@projetech.com

Projetech Darrell Tucker dtucker@projetech.com

Starboard Consulting Nestor Vinas nvinas@starboard-consulting.com

Starboard Consulting Helen Dawson hdawson@starboard-consulting.com

Starboard Consulting Dick Hughes dhughes@starboard-consulting.com

Starboard Consulting Amy Tatum atatum@starboard-consulting.com

Total Resource Management Peter Morrow peter.morrow@trmnet.com

Wood Group Margaret Wood margaret.wood@woodgroup.com
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